
UNITED STATES COURTS 
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF TEXA c: 

FILED 

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT JUN 0 8 2000 EE 
FOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS 

HOUSTON DIVISION ~"'9MiJ8r1~8f~wi 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ) 
) 

Plaintiff, 

vs. 

HARRIS COUNTY MUNICIPAL 
UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 50, and the 
STATE OF TEXAS 

Defendant. 

) 00 
) 
)CIVIL ACTION NO. 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

COMPLAINT 

9 

The United States of America, by authority of the Attorney General of the United States 

and through the undersigned attorneys, acting at the request of the Administrator of the United 

States Environmental Protection Agency ("EPA") files this Complaint and alleges as follows: 

1. This is a civil action for injunctive relief and civil penalties brought under Section 

309 of the Clean Water Act ("CWA"), 33 U.S.C. § 1319, against Defendant Harris County 

Municipal Utility District No.50 ("District 50") for the discharge of pollutants in violation of 

Section 301 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1311 , and for the violation of Administrative Orders 

issued under Section 309 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1309. 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

2. This court has subject matter jurisdiction over this action pursuant to Section 

309(b) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(b), and under 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331 , 1345, and 1355. 
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3. The United States has authority to bring this action on behalf of the Administrator 

of EPA ("Administrator") under Section 506 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1366 and 28 U.S.C. §§ 

516 and 519. 

4. Venue is proper in this judicial district pursuant to Section 309(b) of the CWA, 33 

U.S.C. § 1319(b), and 28 U.S.C. §§ 139l(b) because this is the district where District 50 is 

located and in which the alleged violations occurred. 

5. Defendant State of Texas is a party to this action pursuant to Section 309(e) of the 

Act, 42 U.S.C. § 13 l 9(e), under which the State is liable for the payment of any judgment 

entered against the District in this action, or for the expense of complying with any such 

judgment, to the extent that the laws of the State prevent the town from raising revenues needed 

to comply with such judgment. 

6. Notice of the commencement of this action has been given to the State of Texas in 

accordance with Section 309(b) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. §1319(b). 

THE PARTIES 

7. Plaintiff is the United States of America. 

8. At all relevant times, District 50 has owned, operated, and controlled a "publicly 

owned treatment works" (hereinafter "District 50 plant") as that term is defined at 40 C.F.R. § 

122.2, located in Harris County, Texas. 

9. District 50 is a district created pursuant to Texas law that has jurisdiction over 

sewage disposal and therefore is a "municipality" as defined in Section 502(4) of the CWA, 33 

U.S.C. § 1362( 4). 

10. As a municipality, District 50 is a "person" as defined in Section 502(5) of the 

-2-



CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1362(5), and 40 C.F.R. § 122.2. 

CLEAN WATER ACT STATUTORY PROVISIONS 

11. Section 301(a) ofthe CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 131 l(a), prohibits the discharge of any 

pollutant except as authorized by, and in compliance with, certain enumerated sections of the 

CWA, including Section 402 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1342. 

12. Pursuant to Section 402 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1342, the Administrator may 

issue a permit, termed a National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System ("NPDES") permit, 

that authorizes the discharge of pollutants, upon the condition that such discharge will meet the 

requirements of the CW A. 

13. Section 309(b) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(b), authorizes the Administrator to 

commence a civil action for injunctive relief and civil penalties whenever any person has violated 

Section 301 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1311, or has violated any permit condition or limitation in 

a permit issued under Section 402 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1342. 

GENERAL ALLEGATIONS 

14. At all times relevant to this matter, District 50 discharged municipal wastewater 

from the District 50 Plant. 

15. The municipal wastewater discharged by District 50 contained and continues to 

contain sewage, which is a "pollutant" as defined by Section 502(6) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 

1362(6). 

16. The term "discharge of a pollutant," as defined at Section 502(12) of the CW A, 33 

U.S.C. § 1362(12) means" ... any addition of any pollutant to navigable waters from any point 
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source ." 

17. District 50 discharged and continues to discharge pollutants from the District 50 

Plant through Outfall No. 001 , which is a "point source" as that term is defined in Section 

502(14) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1362(14). 

18. District 50's Outfall No. 001 discharges into Ricketts Gulley and thence to the 

San Jacinto River, which are "navigable waters" of the United States as defined by Section 

502(7) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1362(7), and 40 C.F.R. § 122.2. 

19. Pursuant to Section 402(a) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1342(a), on July 24, 1987, 

EPA issued NPDES Permit No. TX0057053 (" 1987 Permit") to District 50. The permit became 

effective on July 25, 1987. 

20. The 1987 Permit set numerical limitations governing daily maximum, and 30- and 

7- day average concentrations of the effluent characteristics for Total Suspended Solids ("TSS"), 

five (5) day Biochemical Oxygen Demand ("BOD"), and Ammonia-Nitrogen ("NH3-N"), that 

may be discharged from the District 50 Plant from Outfall 001 to Ricketts Gully. 

21. The 1987 Permit required District 50 to monitor its discharges of pollutants from 

the District 50 Plant in order to determine compliance with the effluent limitations established in 

the Permit, and to submit to EPA monthly Discharge Monitoring Reports ("DMRs") containing 

the results of the effluent monitoring. 

22. Pursuant to the requirements of the Permit, District 50 submitted to EPA the 

DMRs which contained the results of District 50' s analysis of its discharges, and which showed 

violations of certain effluent limitations of the Permit. 

23. Over the years, and as set forth in Exhibit A, the District 50 Plant has on 
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numerous occasions exceeded the effluent limitations set forth in the 1987 Permit. 

24. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 122.2l(d) and to Part II.A.3. of the 1987 Permit, District 

50 was required to submit an application for a new permit at least 180 days prior to the expiration 

of the 1987 Permit. 

25. District 50 did not submit a permit renewal application by February 5, 1991. 

26. The 1987 Permit expired on August 5, 1991. 

27. On December 15, 1995, District 50 filed a permit renewal application. Currently, 

the permit is being reviewed and a new permit has not been issued to District 50. 

28. In October 1994, the EPA issued Administrative Order VI-94-1061 (" 1994 

Order") pursuant to section 309(a)(3) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(a)(3). The 1994 Order 

found that District 50 had discharged pollutants in excess of the effluent discharge limitations set 

in the 1987 Permit, and violated 1987 Permit restrictions on wastewater bypasses. The 1994 

Order required District 50 to repair the defects in its system within 30 days or submit a plan for 

repair and a schedule for the repairs. 

29. District 50 did not comply with all of the requirements of the 1994 Order. 

30. In June 1995, the EPA issued Administrative Order VI-95-1024 ("1995 Order") 

pursuant to section 309(a)(3) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(a)(3). The 1995 Order found that 

District 50 continued to discharge pollutants in excess of the effluent discharge limitations 

specified in the 1987 Permit and 1994 Order, violated restrictions on bypasses and overflows 

specified in the 1987 Permit and 1994 Order, and that District 50 had failed to reapply for a 

discharge permit within 180 days prior to expiration of the former permit. The 1995 Order 

required District 50 to, among other things, repair the defects in the system within 30 days or to 
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submit a plan for repair and a schedule for the repairs. 

31. District 50 did not comply with all of the provisions of the 1995 Order. 

32. In February 1996, the EPA issued Administrative Order VI-96-1210 ("1996 

Order") after finding that District 50 allowed Sanitary Sewer Overflows ("SSOs") in violation of 

the Clean Water Act prohibition against discharging pollutants without a permit, and provisions 

of the 1987 Permit prohibiting bypasses and overflows. 

33. The 1996 Order found that "Permittee cannot comply with the CWA using the 

existing collection system." In order to aid District 50's compliance with the CWA, the 1996 

Order set a schedule of compliance, as defined in Section 502 of the CW A, 33 U.S .C. § 

1362( 17), for District 50. This schedule consisted of four compliance phases. As the first phase, 

by February 1996, District 50 was to have begun a system wide Sanitary Sewer System 

Evaluation Survey ("SSES" or "Survey"). District 50 was required to complete the survey 

November I , 1996 , and submit a final report to EPA by December 1, 1996. The 1996 Order 

required the District to submit a schedule for system rehabilitation to the EPA by February 1, 

1997. 

34. District 50 completed a SSES and submitted a "final report" on or about 

December 1, 1996. District 50 has not submitted to EPA a schedule for system rehabilitation and 

begun only limited rehabilitation work. 

35. As set forth in Exhibit A hereto, discharges from the District 50 Outfall 001 have 

continued to exceed the 1987 Permit effluent limits. The SSOs and bypasses have continued and 

continue to date. 
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FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF 
DISCHARGE FROM OUTFALL 001 WITHOUT AN NPDES PERMIT 

36. Paragraphs 1 through 35 are realleged and incorporated herein by reference. 

37. The Permit issued to District 50 by EPA, in 1987. expired on August 5, 1991. 

38. District 50 was required to submit an application for a new permit by February 5, 

1991. 

39. District 50 did not submit a permit renewal application on February 5, 1991 . 

40. District 50 submitted a permit renewal application on or about December 15, 

1995 . 

41. From February 5, 1991 until December 15. 1995, District 50 was in violation of 

40 C.F .R. § 122.21 ( d) which required District 50 to reapply for its permit at least 180 days prior 

to the expiration of the former permit. 

42. From August 5, 1991 to the present, District 50 has discharged pollutants from 

Outfall No. 001 to waters of the United States. 

43. From August 5, 1991 to the present, District 50 has discharged pollutants to 

waters of the United States without a permit. 

44. From at least November 1992, and continuing on numerous occasions thereafter, 

District 50 has discharged pollutants from the District 50 Plant Outfall 001 in excess of the 

effluent limitations for TSS, BOD, and NH3-N which were authorized in the 1987 Permit. 

45. On numerous occasions partially treated sewage has bypassed part of the 

treatment works and has been discharged from Outfall 001 without being fully treated. 

46. District 50 is liable under Section 309 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 13 l 9(d) for a 
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civil penalty of up to $25,000 per day for a violation of Section 30l(a) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 

131 l(a) for each day of the unpermitted discharge. 

SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF 
SANITARY SEWER OVERFLOW ARE UNPERMITTED DISCHARGES 

47. Paragraphs 1 through 46 are realleged and incorporated herein by reference. 

48. The 1987 Permit authorized discharges only from the discharge site designated 

Outfall No. 001. 

49. Any discharge from points other than Outfall No. 001 constitutes discharge 

without a permit. 

50. From at least March 1995, and on numerous other occasions, District 50 

discharged untreated sewage from unauthorized point sources, such as manholes and cleanouts, 

to the waters of the United States via drainage ditches. 

51. Each unauthorized discharge by District 50 constitutes a separate violation of 

Section 301(a) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 131 l(a) for each day of each unauthorized discharge. 

52. District 50 is liable under Section 309(d) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(d) for a 

civil penalty of up to $25,000 per day for each violation prior to January 31, 1997, and a civil 

penalty of up to $27,500 per day for each violation occurring after January 31, 1997. 

THIRD CLAIM FOR RELIEF 
FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH ADMINISTRATIVE ORDERS 

53. Paragraphs 1 through 52 are realleged and incorporated herein by reference. 

54. In October 1994, the EPA issued Administrative Order VI-94-1061 ("1994 

Order") pursuant to section 309(a)(3) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(a)(3). 

55. In June 1995, the EPA issued Administrative Order VI-95-1024 ("1995 Order") 
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pursuant to section 309(a)(3) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(a)(3). 

56. In February 1996, the EPA issued Administrative Order VI-96-1210 ("1996 

Order"). 

57. District 50 has failed to fully comply with the requirements of Administrative 

Order VI-94-1061, VI-95-1024, and VI-96-1210. 

58. Failure to comply with an Administrative Order issued pursuant to Section 309(a), 

renders District 50 liable under Section 309(d) of the CWA. 33 U.S.C . § 1319(d) for a civil 

penalty of up to $25,000 per day for each violation prior to January 31 , 1997, and a civil penalty 

of up to $27,500 per day for each violation occurring after January 31, 1997. 

FOURTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF 
ST A TE OF TEXAS LIABILITY 

59. Paragraphs 1 through 58 are realleged and incorporated herein. 

60. Pursuant to Section 309(e) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 13 l 9(e), the State of Texas is 

joined as a party and is liable for the payment of any judgment, entered against the District in this 

action to the extent that the laws of the State prevent the District fro raising revenues needed to 

comply with such judgment. 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, United States of America, respectfully requests that the 

Court: 

(a) Grant the United States appropriate injunctive relief to ensure compliance with the 

CW A, and enjoin future violations of the CW A by defendant District 50; 

(b) Order Defendant District 50 to pay the United States a civil penalty of up to $25,000 
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per day, for each violation of the CW A prior to January 3 l, 1997 and a civil penalty of up to 

$27,500 per day for each violation of the CWA after January 30, 1997; 

(c) Award the United States the costs and disbursements of this action; 

( d) Order relief as appropriate in favor of the United States and against the State of Texas 

pursuant to Section 309(e) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(e); and 

(d) Grant any and all relief to which the United States is otherwise entitled. 

Respectfully submitted, 
,/ 

.L // LL,A 
Lois J'. Schiff e!1' 
As8'istant Attciney General 
Environment and Natural Resources Division 
United States Department of Justice 

_Washington, D.C. 20530 

.t=/\~~ '~~+-----
avid · . · ishel 
ial Alttorney 

Richard Alonso 
Special Trial Attorney 
Environmental Enforcement Section 
Environment and Natural Resources Division 
United States Department of Justice 
P.O. Box 7611 
Washington, D.C. 20044-7611 
(202) 514-1707 

MeDTJn M. Mosbacker 
United States rittorney 

Southern District of Texas 

Gordon Y ung, st 
Southern istrict of Texa 
P.O. Box 61129 
Houston, Texas 77208-112 
(713) 567-9501 
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OF COUNSEL: 

Cheryl Boyd 
Regional Counsel 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
Region 6 
1445 Ross A venue 
Dallas, Texas 75202 
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